
City of Columbus - Joint City Council & 
Planning Commission Meeting 
August 7, 2024 

1 of 5  

City of Columbus 1 
Joint City Council & Planning Commission Meeting 2 

Hybrid Interactive Technology Format 3 
MN Statute, Section 13D.021 4 

08.07.2024 5 

The 08.07.24 joint meeting of the City of Columbus City Council and Planning Commission was called to 6 
order at 6:00 p.m. by Lynn Carver-Quinn at City Hall on the date of the regular Planning Commission 7 
meeting. Present were Mayor Jesse Preiner, City Councilmembers Rob Busch, Ron Hanegraaf, Janet 8 
Hegland and Sue Wagamon; Planning Commission members Lynn Carver-Quinn, Barb Bobick, Scott 9 
Wendell and Robin Wood; City Administrator Jack Davis; City Planner Dean Johnson; and Planning and 10 
Zoning Tech Eleanor Hahn. 11 

In attendance via interactive technology was Planning Commissioner Bethany Barrette. 12 

A. CALL TO ORDER 13 
1. Call to Order Regular Meeting – 6:00 p.m. 14 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 15 

 16 
B. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 17 

Motion by Wendell to approve the Agenda as submitted. Second by Bobick.  Motion carries with all 18 
Planning Commissioners in favor. 19 

C. APPROVAL OF JULY 17, 2024 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 20 

Motion by Wendell to approve the July 17, 2024, Planning Commission minutes with the addition of the 21 
septic and large animal ordinance discussion. Second by Bobick. Motion carries 4-0-1 (Wood). 22 

D. PUBLIC OPEN FORUM – Nothing at this time. 23 

E. PUBLIC HEARING AND DISCUSSION -- Ordinance 24-02: Chapter 7A Housekeeping Amendment 24 
(Pages 1-9) 25 

Eleanor Hahn read the public hearing notice.  Carver-Quinn opened the public hearing. Carver-Quinn 26 
closed the public hearing after no participation. Planning Commission members had no questions or 27 
comments.  28 

Motion by Wendell to forward Ordinance 24-02: Chapter 7A Housekeeping Amendment to the City 29 
Council for approval at its next meeting. Seconded by Wood.  Motion carries with all Planning 30 
Commission members voting in favor. 31 

 32 
F. PUBLIC HEARING AND DISCUSSION— Ordinance 24-03: Chapter 7B Sign Regulations Housekeeping 33 

Amendment (Pages 10-19) 34 



City of Columbus - Joint City Council & 
Planning Commission Meeting 
August 7, 2024 

2 of 5  

Eleanor Hahn read the public hearing notice.  Carver-Quinn opened the public hearing. Carver-Quinn 1 
closed the public hearing after no participation. Planning Commission members had no questions or 2 
comments.   3 

Hahn went through the proposed sign regulation changes and typographical changes since some 4 
comments had been received in advance.  5 

Hegland stated that there is a discrepancy between the code regulating the Horse Racing (HR) zoning 6 
district, and the signage currently in place at Running Aces Hotel; specifically, that the code requires the 7 
primary building to face the public street, which the hotel does not. She asks if this must be addressed in 8 
the ordinance, or if it was addressed in the PUD CUP. Johnson responds by stating that the Hotel was 9 
processed as a PUD because the property did not have any public access. Although the signage change 10 
was described in the PUD CUP, and that the sign permits were approved administratively, Johnson states 11 
that the ordinance would not need to be changed unless there was a new development that required the 12 
same waiver.  13 

Motion by Bobick to forward Ordinance 24-03: Chapter 7B Sign Regulations Housekeeping 14 
Amendment to the City Council for approval at the next meeting with proposed changes included.  15 
Seconded by Wood.  Motion carries with all Planning Commission members voting in favor. 16 

G. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION – Cannabis Global View (Pages 20-31) 17 
 18 

Johnson presented a discussion on the upcoming Cannabis ordinance. The City’s moratorium on cannabis 19 
businesses ends on Jan. 1, 2025, and cities will need to be prepared with their own ordinances by that 20 
time. His recommendations were given according to the revised State Statute; however, State guidelines 21 
are still a work in progress and still unclear on many points. He pointed out that by statute the minimum 22 
legal age for cannabis use is 21, the same as alcohol, and the State has a new Office of Cannabis 23 
Management (“OCM”) responsible for everything except industrial hemp, which is used for clothing, rope 24 
and other products. The biggest issue is that the moratorium ceases to exist on Jan. 1, so to have 25 
something in place is the City’s best protection, he said. Applications can be accepted by the OCM for any 26 
of the 11 businesses allowed by statute as soon as the State rules are adopted. The first draft of the rules 27 
was released on July 31  2024 and are currently available for review and comment. During review, 28 
Johnson did not find much that would be helpful in making some key policy decisions. The City does not 29 
have the right to prohibit any of the 11 possible business enterprises but can regulate zoning. Johnson 30 
provided an overview of each of the 11 cannabis businesses. As far as events, it appears the City will have 31 
the right to allow or prohibit consumption at events. The law allows individuals 21 and over to have two 32 
ounces on their person and two pounds at their home. The City cannot regulate in ways that don’t 33 
conform to State law. Minnesota is now the 23rd or 24th state to allow legal cannabis, he said. The law 34 
requires specific security and lighting to cultivate outdoors, which would not be allowed in the Rural 35 
Residential (RR) zoning district. Johnson explained that it is more likely that any cultivation will take place 36 
in a year-round indoor facility to control purity and potency of the product. He said the State has a 37 
sample ordinance and his recommendation would be to amend sections of the City Code rather than have 38 
a stand-alone ordinance. The State also sets fee amounts for initial application and renewal. The City 39 
would receive applications from the OMC, and would have 30 days to certify that the proposed business 40 
is consistent with the code. Further permits, such as conditional use permits, would go through the 41 
normal process and carry the City’s regular fee amounts.  42 



City of Columbus - Joint City Council & 
Planning Commission Meeting 
August 7, 2024 

3 of 5  

 1 
 2 
Hegland said it would be helpful to know what these businesses require before deciding where they can 3 
be allowed. For example, she asked about the need for water and use of chemical to extract them from 4 
the plant. She noted the City’s zoning districts are very different in the zones with public utilities as 5 
compared to those without.  6 
 7 
Johnson said he cannot be specific, but they are usually not enterprises that use a great deal of water or 8 
generate a lot of waste compared to other manufacturing. He said the City could go to the Office of 9 
Cannabis Management with any questions. That Office is holding a one-hour workshop intended for 10 
municipalities this coming Friday. He said he planned to attend. 11 
 12 
Wendell noted the City is required to allow at least one retail business based on its population and can 13 
have a municipal business. He asked if it could be one or the other. 14 
 15 
Johnson said the City could have a store but would still have to allow one other retail. He said if a City 16 
does not have experience with municipal liquor, he doesn’t recommend going there.  17 
 18 
Hegland asked how the population quotas worked between the City and County. 19 
 20 
Johnson said cities can convey the authority for retail to a County if the County is willing to take it. He said 21 
he does not see Columbus as being a likely market for retail because of its small size.  Cities can limit but 22 
do not need to limit the number of retail stores. The City will need to determine how the retail permits 23 
will be awarded and whether it wants to limit. A limit of one would require a lottery or a first-come, first-24 
served rule. He said cultivators should have tip-up buildings that will generate taxes rather than hoop 25 
buildings, which would not.  26 
 27 
Busch said his company has been working with potential cultivators and he has quite a bit of information 28 
on State regulations. He said many growers are using hydroponics so water is recycled.  29 
 30 
Johnson said the building design standards the City sets will apply to all structures in a given zoning 31 
district. He suggested if the City is concerned about first-come, first-served, it could allow up to three 32 
retail stores but would likely not get that many.  The downside of allowing only one is that the successful 33 
applicant might not be one the City would most like to see have the permit, he said.  34 
 35 
Hegland said she is concerned about naïve people who believe this is a path to riches who will go through 36 
this process and then find out that it is not, especially cultivators.  37 
 38 
Johnson said because the City does not have an agricultural district, he would suggest not allowing 39 
outdoor cultivation except for the individual’s right to have up to four, flowering plants.  40 
 41 
Hegland asked if they could agree at this point to prohibit outdoor cultivation.  42 
 43 
Johnson explained he would have to check with legal, but he believes that the City could not allow 44 
outdoor cultivation in any district.  45 
 46 



City of Columbus - Joint City Council & 
Planning Commission Meeting 
August 7, 2024 

4 of 5  

Wagamon said she could see testing facilities and cultivation in the commercial industrial districts.  1 
 2 
Johnson pointed out that cannabis transportation and delivery businesses could be part of that, as well as 3 
manufacturers, medical and mezzo businesses could be allowed. Medical could include retail, so that may 4 
not fit in the Lake Drive area.  He would not see anything being allowed in Rural Residential areas. The City 5 
needs to designate a place for each of the 11 possible businesses even though some may never locate in 6 
Columbus. He said cannabis retail could work in mixed-use areas as retail would not have on-site 7 
consumption, but a cannabis micro business could. He said the challenge will be to be ready when they 8 
start getting applications.  9 
 10 
Hegland said it would make sense to know more about the manufacturing process before deciding where 11 
that type of business would fit. She is concerned about mixed-use areas since a micro business could be 12 
near housing. She asked if the conflict between State and Federal laws would mean that the businesses 13 
would be cash-based because they could not use a bank and could that lead to higher crime.  14 
 15 
The Planning Commissioners and City Council members went through the zoning map and by consensus 16 
designated possible districts for each of the 11 types of businesses and agreed to allow up to three retail 17 
stores. Rules for what can and cannot be consumed on-site and rules for events were reviewed. 18 
Consensus was reached that on-site consumption for events could be allowed in any district, based on 19 
other requirements being met.  20 
 21 
Hegland asked if the businesses could be IUP (interim use permit) rather than a CUP (conditional use 22 
permit), as CUPs are forever.  23 
 24 
Johnson said that would make it harder for harder for the businesses to get financing. 25 
 26 
Hegland said it was her understanding that conventional banks that have to follow federal laws cannot 27 
finance cannabis businesses. 28 
 29 
Wagamon asked if it would be possible to look into what communities have done in other states that 30 
already have cannabis businesses.  31 
 32 
Johnson said he would work on a document that incorporated the Commissioners’ and Council Members’ 33 
recommendations and there would have to be a public hearing in December. He suggested at least a 34 
monthly meeting to arrive at details.  35 
 36 
It was tentatively agreed to meet on the first Wednesday of each month. The next meeting will be a joint 37 
meeting on Sept. 4, the next regular Planning Commission meeting.   38 
 39 
H. PLANNING COMMISSIONER’S REPORT 40 

 41 
There were no reports. 42 

 43 
I. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S & PLANNING & ZONING TECH’S REPORT 44 

 45 
The City Administrator and Planning & Zoning Tech did not have reports. 46 



City of Columbus - Joint City Council & 
Planning Commission Meeting 
August 7, 2024 

5 of 5  

                                                          1 
J. ADJOURNMENT 2 

Motion by Wood to adjourn. Second by Bobick. Motion carries with all Planning Commissioners in 3 
favor. 4 

Meeting adjourned at 8:40  p.m. 5 

Respectfully submitted: 6 

Eleanor Hahn, Planning and Zoning Technician 7 

Drafted by: Carol Shukle 8 
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 9 


	City of Columbus
	Joint City Council & Planning Commission Meeting
	Hybrid Interactive Technology Format
	MN Statute, Section 13D.021
	A. CALL TO ORDER
	B. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA
	C. APPROVAL OF JULY 17, 2024 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
	Motion by Wendell to forward Ordinance 24-02: Chapter 7A Housekeeping Amendment to the City Council for approval at its next meeting. Seconded by Wood.  Motion carries with all Planning Commission members voting in favor.

	F. PUBLIC HEARING AND DISCUSSION— Ordinance 24-03: Chapter 7B Sign Regulations Housekeeping Amendment (Pages 10-19)
	Motion by Bobick to forward Ordinance 24-03: Chapter 7B Sign Regulations Housekeeping Amendment to the City Council for approval at the next meeting with proposed changes included.  Seconded by Wood.  Motion carries with all Planning Commission member...
	G. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION – Cannabis Global View (Pages 20-31)

	Johnson presented a discussion on the upcoming Cannabis ordinance. The City’s moratorium on cannabis businesses ends on Jan. 1, 2025, and cities will need to be prepared with their own ordinances by that time. His recommendations were given according ...
	Hegland said it would be helpful to know what these businesses require before deciding where they can be allowed. For example, she asked about the need for water and use of chemical to extract them from the plant. She noted the City’s zoning districts...
	Johnson said he cannot be specific, but they are usually not enterprises that use a great deal of water or generate a lot of waste compared to other manufacturing. He said the City could go to the Office of Cannabis Management with any questions. That...
	Wendell noted the City is required to allow at least one retail business based on its population and can have a municipal business. He asked if it could be one or the other.
	Johnson said the City could have a store but would still have to allow one other retail. He said if a City does not have experience with municipal liquor, he doesn’t recommend going there.
	Hegland asked how the population quotas worked between the City and County.
	Johnson said cities can convey the authority for retail to a County if the County is willing to take it. He said he does not see Columbus as being a likely market for retail because of its small size.  Cities can limit but do not need to limit the num...
	Busch said his company has been working with potential cultivators and he has quite a bit of information on State regulations. He said many growers are using hydroponics so water is recycled.
	Johnson said the building design standards the City sets will apply to all structures in a given zoning district. He suggested if the City is concerned about first-come, first-served, it could allow up to three retail stores but would likely not get t...
	Hegland said she is concerned about naïve people who believe this is a path to riches who will go through this process and then find out that it is not, especially cultivators.
	Johnson said because the City does not have an agricultural district, he would suggest not allowing outdoor cultivation except for the individual’s right to have up to four, flowering plants.
	Hegland asked if they could agree at this point to prohibit outdoor cultivation.
	Johnson explained he would have to check with legal, but he believes that the City could not allow outdoor cultivation in any district.
	Wagamon said she could see testing facilities and cultivation in the commercial industrial districts.
	Johnson pointed out that cannabis transportation and delivery businesses could be part of that, as well as manufacturers, medical and mezzo businesses could be allowed. Medical could include retail, so that may not fit in the Lake Drive area.  He woul...
	Hegland said it would make sense to know more about the manufacturing process before deciding where that type of business would fit. She is concerned about mixed-use areas since a micro business could be near housing. She asked if the conflict between...
	The Planning Commissioners and City Council members went through the zoning map and by consensus designated possible districts for each of the 11 types of businesses and agreed to allow up to three retail stores. Rules for what can and cannot be consu...
	Hegland asked if the businesses could be IUP (interim use permit) rather than a CUP (conditional use permit), as CUPs are forever.
	Johnson said that would make it harder for harder for the businesses to get financing.
	Hegland said it was her understanding that conventional banks that have to follow federal laws cannot finance cannabis businesses.
	Wagamon asked if it would be possible to look into what communities have done in other states that already have cannabis businesses.
	Johnson said he would work on a document that incorporated the Commissioners’ and Council Members’ recommendations and there would have to be a public hearing in December. He suggested at least a monthly meeting to arrive at details.
	It was tentatively agreed to meet on the first Wednesday of each month. The next meeting will be a joint meeting on Sept. 4, the next regular Planning Commission meeting.
	Motion by Wood to adjourn. Second by Bobick. Motion carries with all Planning Commissioners in favor.


